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ADDENDUM 1 TO REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) 
 

The Department of Foreign Affairs, Trade and Development (the department) hereby amends, 

in accordance with this Addendum the “Request for Proposal” for the provision of Evaluation of 

DFATD’s Ukraine Country Program, bearing the number 2018-EVAL-UKRAINE, and dated 14 

December, 2017.  This Addendum hereby forms part of the RFP.  

 

The purpose of this Addendum is to: 

 

1. Make certain amendments to the RFP; 
2. Provide answers to questions received; 
3. Provide answers to questions and minutes arising from the bidder’s conference held on 05 

January 2018 at 9:00 am (EST);  
4. Provide amended Microsoft  Word versions of the TECH forms; and 
5. Extend the RFP closing date from 12 February 2018 to 23 February 2018 at 2:00 pm 

(EST).  
 
*Note: The RFP closing date was previously extended from 31 January 2018 to 12 February 
2018 on buy and sell.   
 

A. AMENDMENTS TO THE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

 

1. Delete A1.1 Integrity Provisions – Declaration of Convicted Offences in its entirety 

and Insert the following: 

In accordance with the Integrity Provisions of the Standard Instructions, all bidders must 
provide with their bid, if applicable, the Integrity declaration form available on the Forms for 
the Integrity Regime website (http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/declaration-eng.html), to be 
given further consideration in the procurement process. 
 
2. Delete A2.1 Integrity Provisions – Requirement Documentation in its entirety and 

Insert the following: 
 

In accordance with the Ineligibility and Suspension Policy (http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-
if/politique-policy-eng.html), the Bidder must provide the required documentation, as 
applicable, to be given further consideration in the procurement process. 
 
3. Delete 3.7 Insurance Requirement in its entirety and Insert the following: 

 
The Bidder must provide a letter form an insurance broker or an insurance company rated as 
A++ to B++ by A.M. Best starting that the Bidder, if awarded a Contract as a result of the 
RFP, can be insured in accordance with the Insurance Requirements specified in Annex C. 
In case of a consortium or join venture, at least one Member must meet the insurance 
requirements. 

If the information is not provided in the bid, the Contracting Authority will so inform the Bidder 
and provide the Bidder with a time frame within which to meet the requirement.  Failure to 
comply with the request of the Contracting Authority and meet the requirement within that 
time period will render the bid non-responsive. 

http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/declaration-eng.html
http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/declaration-eng.html
http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/politique-policy-eng.html
http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/politique-policy-eng.html
http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/politique-policy-eng.html
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4. Delete Annex D – Security Requirements Check List in its entirety and Insert: 

There are no security requirements under this Contract. 

5. Insert the following clause into the RFP Part 1 – General Information: 

1.4  INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 

Canada has determined that any intellectual property rights arising from the performance 
of the Work under the resulting contract will belong to Canada, for the following reasons, 
as set out in the Policy on Title to Intellectual Property Arising Under Crown Procurement 
Contracts: 
 
The Intellectual Property in Foreground Information consists of material subject to 
copyright, with the exception of computer software and all documentation pertaining to 
that software. 

6. Insert the following clause into Part 5 – Resulting Contract Clauses under section 5.15 
SACC Manual Clauses: 

Intellectual Property 

SACC Manual Clause 4007 (2010-08-16) “Canada to Own Intellectual Property Rights in 
Foreground Information”. 

 
7. Delete the following in R2.1 in the Attachment 1 to Part 4 – Technical Evaluation and 

Form TECH 5. 
 
“A Sector Specialist may cover up to two of the three areas”. 

       
8. Delete the following in forms TECH 6A, TECH 6B and TECH 7: 

 
“References (name, title, phone and email):” 
 
And Replace with the following: 
 
“References (Name, Title, Client Organization, Telephone number and Email Address):” 
 
 
 

http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/068.nsf/eng/00005.html
http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/068.nsf/eng/00005.html
https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-and-guidelines/standard-acquisition-clauses-and-conditions-manual/4/4007/3
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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS: 

Question 1 
 

 In the following criteria (RFP p.15): 

 

1. Using TECH-6A – Curriculum Vitae for Proposed Personnel, the 

Bidder must demonstrate that the proposed Team Leader has led 

and completed at least two (2) Evaluation Assignments in 

International Assistance. 

 

2. To meet this requirement, the Evaluation Assignments must have been 

completed not earlier than 10 years prior to the RFP closing date AND 

be at least 6 months in duration. 

 

Using form TECH-6A – Curriculum Vitae for Proposed Personnel, the 
Bidder must demonstrate that the proposed Team Leader has 36 
months of experience providing evaluation services in International 
Assistance. 

 

To meet this requirement, the Bidder must clearly indicate the level of 

effort in months for each Evaluation Assignment listed for the proposed 

Team Leader. 

  

The 36 months of experience and the 6 months duration are related 

to the LOE of the proposed consultant or the total duration of the 

contract?  

Answer 1 The 36 months of experience required for the Evaluation Assignment and 

the minimum 6 months duration relates to the level of effort of the 

proposed Team Leader (for each Evaluation Assignment) as listed in the 

criteria M1 on page 15. 

Question 2 
Can a Co-Team Lead role can be considered as part as the mandatory 
Technical Criteria M2 (2 Evaluation Assignments) or is it strictly limited to 
Team Leading Role? 

Answer 2 The Mandatory Criteria M2 specifically requires for a Team Leader role, 

not a Co-Team Lead.  Only one individual must be identified as a Team 

Leader. 

Question 3 
In regards to technical criteria, can Monitoring activities be counted as 
Evaluation Assignments? 

Answer 3 As per the definitions provided on page 14 of the RFP, the “Evaluation 

Assignment” refers to a specific assignment of short duration focusing on 

specific evaluation duties and tasks leading to evaluation deliverables 

such as an evaluation report. Monitoring activities will not be considered. 
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Question 4 What is GAC’s definition of a conflict of interest? 

a) Can a consultant who worked in the implementation of some of the 

DFATD’s assistance projects be involved in the evaluation, if we 

make sure that he/she will not be involved in the evaluation of the 

project in which he/she took part? (For example, Local Operations 

Manager – Decentralized Management of Skills Training in Ukraine 

Project). 

b) Can a former CIDA employee, receiving a pension, be considered in 

conflict of interest?  If no, are there other procedures apart from the 

Former Public Servant in Receipt of a Pension Form to complete? 

Answer 4 Within the context of the implementation of the resulting contract, the 

concept of conflict of interest is defined in section 4 of the 2010B-28- 

General Conditions as: “(…) Conflict means any matter, circumstance, 

interest, or activity affecting the Contractor, its personnel or 

subcontractors, which may or may appear to impair the ability of the 

Contractor to perform the Work diligently and independently.”   The 

determination whether there is a conflict of interest is made on a case–by-

case basis based on the facts presented at the time of the contract. If the 

Bidder was involved with the Department in projects which will be covered 

by the evaluation under the resulting contract, the Bidder must: 

 demonstrate that he or she was not involved in the development of 

this RFP and that it did not have access to privileged information in 

order to show that it meets section 18 of 2003 18 (2012-03-02) 

Conflict of Interest – Unfair advantage of the Standard Instructions. 

 demonstrate that it will have sufficient independence to carry out 
the evaluation assignment and comply, among other things, with 
section 28 of 2010B 28 (2008-05-12) No bribe or conflict of the 
General Conditions. 

If the Bidder is a former public servant, it shall disclose it in the 

certifications in Attachment 1 to Part 3 A2.4.  

If the Bidder is a former public servant or it employs a former public 

servant, the Bidder shall demonstrate that it will not be in a conflict of 

interest at the time of the contract, as specified in sections 27 and 28 of 

the General Conditions 2010B.  

Question 5 
Questions related to References: 

 

1. On the page 7 of the RFP, point 3.2.4 states the following: “Bidders 

should provide the required references in the Technical Proposal of 

their bid to be awarded a contract.  Canada may declare a bid non-

responsive if the required references are not submitted as 

requested”. Could you please clarify what type of references do you 
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require to include in the proposal, as well as their format, number 

and information they should contain? 

2. Page. 7 of RFP, point 3.2.4 

    “The bidder should provide the required references in the Technical 

Proposal”. 

According to our understanding this point makes reference to the 

forms TECH-6A, TECH-6B and TECH-7. Similarly, could you please 

confirm that we only need to provide contact details (References: 

name, title, phone and email) to prove previous experience of the 

experts, and that there is no need to attach supporting documents 

to these forms? 

Answer 5 As per RFP section 3.2.4 bidders should provide one client reference for 

each assignment presented in each completed TECH form to substantiate 

the experience submitted in response to the Evaluation Criteria. As 

stipulated in the amended TECH forms, the following information should 

be provided for each reference: Name, Title, Client Organization, 

Telephone number, and E-mail address. 

Question 6 On the page 41 of Statement of Work the following documents are 

mentioned: The Ukraine Program Country Development Programming 

Framework (CDPF) 2009-2014, Canada’s bilateral Country Development 

Strategy (CDS) with Ukraine (2014-2019), START Performance 

Measurement Strategy (2010), PSOPs Performance Measurement 

Strategy (2016-2019), PSOPs Strategy and Implementation Plan (2017-

2019).  Could you please provide us with these documents? 

Answer 6 These documents will be shared with the Contractor during the planning 

phase of the evaluation. 

Question 7 Could you please inform us on the disbursements by sector from fiscal 

year 2009-2010 to fiscal year 2016-2017 covered in this evaluation? 

Answer 7 A list of funded projects in Ukraine is provided as an attachment. Some 

additional project information is publicly available through the 

Department’s project browser 

(http://w05.international.gc.ca/projectbrowser-banqueprojets/filter-filtre). 

Question 8 Could you please provide us with the list of projects under the DFATD’s 

Ukraine Development Program, DFATD’s Humanitarian Assistance in the 

Ukraine and DFATD’s, Peace and Stabilization Operations Program 

(PSOPs) in the Ukraine from fiscal year 2009-2010 to fiscal year 2016-

2017? 

Answer 8 
The project list is provided as an attachment. Please note that these 
numbers are indicative and are preliminary numbers for fiscal year 2016-
17. Updated information will be shared with the Contractor during the 
planning phase of the evaluation. 

http://w05.international.gc.ca/projectbrowser-banqueprojets/filter-filtre
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Question 9 
In order to develop a comprehensive sampling and data collection plan, 
can GAC provide more information about the number of individual 
assistance projects in the DFATD Ukraine portfolio to be included under 
this evaluation?  

Answer 9 The project list included in response to the question 8 contains 157 

projects. Some additional project information is publicly available through 

the Department’s project browser. 

(http://w05.international.gc.ca/projectbrowser-banqueprojets/filter-filtre). 

Question 10 
  In order to develop a feasible sampling and data collection plan, can GAC 

provide more information about implementation geographies of the 
assistance projects in the DFATD Ukraine portfolio to be included under 
this evaluation?  

Answer 10 This information will be shared with the selected Contractor during the 

planning phase of the evaluation.  Some additional project information is 

publicly available through the Department’s project browser. 

(http://w05.international.gc.ca/projectbrowser-banqueprojets/filter-filtre).  

Question 11 
  In order to inform the evaluation methodology, can GAC provide basic 

descriptions about the projects to be included under this evaluation, 
including information about the objectives, implementing partners, and 
relevant project stakeholders/beneficiaries?  

Answer 11 The list of implementing partners for each project can be found in the 

project list included in response to the question 8.  Some additional project 

information is publicly available through the Department’s project browser 

(http://w05.international.gc.ca/projectbrowser-banqueprojets/filter-filtre). 

Question 12 
We were confused with the part 3.6 (it talks about the certificates required 

from the Bidder). We were trying to find the Certificate instructions within 

the bid solicitation, but it was not there. So our questions are: 

 

1. In case if the Bidder's name is not in the FCP for employment equity 

list, should he provide the Declaration of Convicted Offences? 

 

2. What is the Declaration of Convicted Offences? 

 

 

3. In case if Declaration of Convicted Offences must be provided, it must 

be done for each of the team members? 

 

 

 

4. Which are the other mandatory certificates should be submitted with 

the Bidder application? 

 

5. How do we present you all the needed certificates, if there are no 

http://w05.international.gc.ca/projectbrowser-banqueprojets/filter-filtre
http://w05.international.gc.ca/projectbrowser-banqueprojets/filter-filtre
http://w05.international.gc.ca/projectbrowser-banqueprojets/filter-filtre
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layouts presented in the bid solicitation? 

Answer 12 1. Federal Contractors Program for Employment:  

The Federal Contractors Program for Employment Equity and the Integrity 

Provisions are two different requirements. 

Please refer to A2.5 under Attachment 1 to Part 3 – Certifications.   

The Bidder has to certify that the Bidder, and any of the Bidder's members 

if the Bidder is a consortium or joint venture, is not named on the Federal 

Contractors Program (FCP) for employment equity "FCP Limited Eligibility 

to Bid" list. 

The Federal Contractor Program Employment Equity is only applicable to 

Canadian Bidders. 

2. Declaration of Convicted Offences (please also refer to Answer 

16): 

The Declaration of Convicted Offences relates to the Integrity Provisions.  

More clarity is provided in answer 16 below to the question on integrity 

provisions. 

3. Please refer to answer 16 below regarding the question on integrity 

provisions and declaration of convicted offence form. 

4. All certifications as listed in Attachment 1 to Part 3 – Certifications are 

to be completed and submitted in accordance with the RFP 

instructions. 

5. The certifications should be presented as a separate document as per 

Part 3 of the RFP section 3.1 – Proposal Preparation Instructions. 

 

Question 13 
Questions related to Insurance Requirements: 

 

1. Part 3.7 (it talks about insurance requirements such as a letter from 

an insurance company licensed in Canada due to the conditions 

mentioned in the Annex C).  We are interested if this insurance 

letter is mandatory for participation in the tender? Since our team is 

based in Kyiv, it is quite difficult for us to find a Canadian insurance 

broker or company. Is there a possibility to provide the same letter 

from the international insurance company, which is located in 

Ukraine? 

 

2. Please confirm whether we need or not at the proposal stage to 

provide a letter from an insurance broker as per Section 3.7 

Insurance Requirements? Or is it recommended to provide such 

letter with the proposal? 

 

Answer 13 Please refer to the Amendments section 3 on the first page of this 

addendum.  We have deleted and inserted a new clause under section 3.7 
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of the RFP – Insurance Requirements to allow for more flexibility. 

Question 14 
Question related to the Security Requirements Check List (SRCL): 

 

1. Annex D - Security Requirements Check List is already completed. 

What are we supposed to do with it? Should it be printed out and 

added to the application? Or is it just an example and there should be 

nothing done with it? 

2. In Annex A, Article 8, it is mentioned that there will be one mission in 

Ukraine, while in the Annex D – SRCL two visits are specified. Kindly 

clarify. 

Answer 14 1. The Annex D - The Security Requirements Check List has been 

deleted in its entirety from the RFP. There are no security 

requirements for this Contract. 

2. The Annex D - The Security Requirements Check List has been 

deleted in its entirety from the RFP.  The Statement of Work involves 

only one data collection mission in Ukraine 

Question 15 If the Team Leader (TL) is also a Sector Specialist, should we use 

separate forms TECH 6A to demonstrate, in each case, that the TL fulfils 

M1 and M2 and, as Sector specialist, that he/she has X months of 

evaluation experience in a given sector? Otherwise, can the same form 

be used to fulfil the requirements for the TL and the Sector Specialist?  

Answer 15 Yes, as stated in R2.1, when the proposed Team Leader is also a Sector 

Specialist, the Bidder is to clearly indicate in the corresponding TECH-5 

and TECH-6A Forms.  Please use separate TECH-5 and TECH-6A forms 

to fulfill the requirements for the Team Leader and the Sector Specialists 

(even though the Team Leader is also a Sector Specialist). 

Question 16 Questions Related to Integrity Provisions: 

 

1. Section A1.1 and A2.1 Integrity Provisions: Could you please clarify 

which of the forms available on the link provide in the RFP 

(http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/formulaires-forms-eng.html) are 

applicable and should be completed and included in the proposal if 

none of the three conditions to complete the “integrity declaration form” 

applies, and we don’t have subcontractors? Should we only submit the 

“List of names for integrity verification form”? 

 

2. Should a company based in a non-Canadian territory submit an 

Integrity Declaration Form? IS the list of foreign criminal charges 

applicable? 

Answer 16 1. Please follow the link below for information regarding Integrity Regime 

and as listed in the bidder’s conference minutes. 

http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/formulaires-forms-eng.html
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(http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/declaration-eng.html ) 

Required information to submit with a bid or offer can be found in the 
link below: 
 
http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/bulletins/renseignements-information-
eng.html 

Mandatory information to submit with the bid or proposal: 

a. All information required under section 17 of the Ineligibility and 
Suspension Policy, including a required list of names. 

b. Any information pertaining to any criminal charge or conviction in the 
past three years of a Canadian offence listed in section 6 of the 
Ineligibility and Suspension Policy or similar foreign offence listed in 
section 7 of the Policy. (Integrity Declaration Form should be filled out 
if applicable– please follow instructions and include a separate 
envelope with the bid.  The Contracting Representative will send the 
envelope to Public Services and Procurement Canada. 

If you have questions, please contact the Integrity Regime team: 

Toll free: 1-844-705-2084 

Email:  PWGSC.O.integrity-TPSGC.O.integrite@pwgsc-tpsgc.gc.ca 

 

2. Yes, a company based in a non-Canadian territory should submit the 

Integrity Declaration form if it is applies. 

 

Question 17 R3.1: what is considered “study experience”? Is Masters or a PhD 

considered as study experience for this criteria? 

Answer 17 Study experience in R 3.1 refers to completion of a program of post-

secondary education leading to a degree (Bachelor’s, Master’s, etc.) or 

diploma (e.g., post-graduate certificate) obtained from an educational 

institution.  

 

Question 18 
Does the bidder have to be registered as a supplier to get a PBN at the 

time of submitting the proposal? Same goes for the BN. Should the 

bidder already have a BN at the time of the proposal submission?  

Does a foreign company based in a non-Canadian territory have to 

obtain a BN in order to participate in the RFP? If yes, can this 

procedure be done after the award notification? 

Answer 18 Yes, the bidder must be registered as a supplier to obtain a procurement 

business number (PBN) at the time of submitting the proposal and same 

goes for the business number (BN).  A foreign company based in a non-

Canadian territory must obtain a BN in order to participate in the RFP. 

http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/declaration-eng.html)
http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/bulletins/renseignements-information-eng.html
http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/bulletins/renseignements-information-eng.html
mailto:PWGSC.O.integrity-TPSGC.O.integrite@pwgsc-tpsgc.gc.ca
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  Information on PBN and BN follows: 

  Procurement Business Number (PBN) 

Suppliers are required to have a Procurement Business Number (PBN) 
before contract award. Suppliers may register for a PBN online at Supplier 
Registration Information. For non-Internet registration, suppliers may 
contact the Info Line at 1-800-811-1148 to obtain the telephone number of 
the nearest Supplier Registration Agent.  Please follow the link below to 
obtain the PBN number. 

https://srisupplier.contractscanada.gc.ca/index-
eng.cfm?af=ZnVzZWFjdGlvbj1yZWdpc3Rlci5pbnRybyZpZD0y&lang=eng 

   Business Number (BN) 

Please refer to the Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) website and contact 

CRA to obtain the business number for your specific region.   Please 

follow the link below to obtain the BN number to register in Canada. 

https://www.canada.ca/en/revenue-

agency/services/tax/businesses/topics/registering-your-

business/register.html 

Question 19 
Is there an updated pdf of the SACC Manual including all annexes and 

templates we can use in order to have all necessary documents to be 

completed? 

Answer 19 Please find the link below for the SACC Manual as reference.  There is no 

pdf copy available, however at this link there is an option to view and 

download the file version in HTML format. 

https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-and-guidelines/Supply-Manual 

 

Question 20 
Questions related to Taxes: 

 

1. In the Article 3.5.2 of the RFP, it is mentioned: “Canada will pay the 

Bidder’s output taxes as required by local tax legislation but will not 

be responsible for the payment of the input taxes payable by the 

Bidder to any third party (including Subcontractors).” Could you 

please further explain what is meant by this sentence? 

 

2. What is considered as Applicable taxes under 3.5.1? 

Answer 20 1. Output VAT is regarded as the value-added tax that is calculated and 

charged on the sale of goods and services from your business, if you 

are VAT-registered.  Input VAT is the value-added tax, which is added 

to the price when you purchase goods or services that are applicable 

to VAT. 

https://srisupplier.contractscanada.gc.ca/index-eng.cfm?af=ZnVzZWFjdGlvbj1yZWdpc3Rlci5pbnRybyZpZD0y&lang=eng
https://srisupplier.contractscanada.gc.ca/index-eng.cfm?af=ZnVzZWFjdGlvbj1yZWdpc3Rlci5pbnRybyZpZD0y&lang=eng
https://srisupplier.contractscanada.gc.ca/index-eng.cfm?af=ZnVzZWFjdGlvbj1yZWdpc3Rlci5pbnRybyZpZD0y&lang=eng
https://srisupplier.contractscanada.gc.ca/index-eng.cfm?af=ZnVzZWFjdGlvbj1yZWdpc3Rlci5pbnRybyZpZD0y&lang=eng
https://www.canada.ca/en/revenue-agency/services/tax/businesses/topics/registering-your-business/register.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/revenue-agency/services/tax/businesses/topics/registering-your-business/register.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/revenue-agency/services/tax/businesses/topics/registering-your-business/register.html
https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-and-guidelines/Supply-Manual
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2. Please refer to Part 5 – Resulting Contract Clauses define “Applicable 

Taxes” as follows: 

 "Applicable Tax" means any tax applicable in the jurisdiction of the 

Work”. 

Question 21 
According to Article 3.2.3, could you please clarify how the months of 

experience will be calculated if, for example, an expert has worked during 

the same period in different evaluation projects (e.g. 20 days between 

March 2015 – December 2015 under project A and 15 days within the 

same period under project B)? 

Answer 21 
According to paragraph 3.2.3 c) evaluation assignments/assignments that 

overlap are counted once. 

Question 22 
While in Article 2.7 the applicable law is in accordance to Ontario 

Canada, in Article 5.13.6 it mentions that the Contractor will comply with 

all applicable provisions of the laws in force in Ukraine. Kindly clarify. 

Answer  22 The relationship between the parties under the resulting contract is to be 

governed by the laws of Ontario, Canada. 

In performing the work abroad, the Contractor will also have to comply with 

applicable local laws.  For example, if the Contractor hires a local expert, 

the contract between this expert and the Contractor will need to be 

compliant with the applicable local laws. 

Question 23 
Regarding the experts’ experience calculation as mentioned in 

Attachment 1 to Part 4, if there is an expert who falls under the category 

of a sector specialist with 5 years of experience in that sector within the 

last 10 years, how is it possible to also cover for another 5 years one or 

more areas of expertise? Is it possible for a project to cover one sector 

and additionally cover one or more areas of expertise? If yes, how is 

his/her experience calculated? 

Answer  23 As specified in R.2.1 and amended Form TECH 5,The Bidder should 

propose at least three individuals as Sector Specialists in the following 

sectors: Governance, Sustainable Economic Growth, and Peace and 

Stabilization. If less than three individuals are identified as sector 

specialist, the proposal will be given 0 points for the criteria R1 and R2. 

The team leader could also be proposed as Sector Specialist. 

Please refer to Section A Amendment #7 to this addendum. 

Question 24 
Page. 7 of RFP, Point 3.2.3 

The RFP states: “The bidder must provide the necessary documentation to 

support compliance with this requirement”. 

Could you please confirm that documentation is requested to support the 

experience of our company with reference to the evaluation criteria, and 

that this point doesn’t make reference to the experience of the experts? 
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Answer 24 The Bidder must provide the necessary documentation to support 

compliance with the Technical Proposal Instructions including, section 

3.3.2, subsections a) through to e).  

Bidders are reminded that it is their responsibility to ensure that necessary 

documentation is provided to demonstrate compliance with each and 

every requirement of the RFP.   

Question 25 
Is there a maximum number of individuals that can be submitted as part of 
the team? In other words, is a team limited to the 7 individuals required for 
the proposal (the team lead, 3 sector specialists, and 3 experts)? For 
instance, could our team include the required 7 roles listed above in 
addition to others with relevant expertise?   
 

Answer 25 
There is no maximum number of individuals that can be submitted as part 

of the team. However, only one proposed individual will be rated for each 

required Sector Specialist (as outlined on page 18 in R2.1) and Expert (as 

outlined on page 22 in R3.1) positions. A Sector Specialist may cover up 

to two of the three areas (as outlined on page 18 in R2.1).  One team 

member can have multiple areas of expertise (as outlined on page 22 in 

R3.1).   

 

Question 26 
On p. 45, the RFP notes: “It is expected that three team members will 
participate in the data collection activities in Ukraine.” If we are allowed to 
have a team that’s larger than the 7 roles listed above, can some of these 
additional team members conduct the data collection as part of the 
mission if they also have the necessary relevant expertise?  
 

Answer 26 
If justified and agreed upon between the Program Authority and the 

selected consultant, more than three team members may participate in the 

data collection activities in Ukraine. However, the guideline of three team 

members is given to create a standard among bidders to inform financial 

proposals.  

 

Question 27 
On p. 16, the RFP notes that individuals submitted for team lead can 
earn 5 points if they hold a Master’s degree, and 2 points if they hold a 
Bachelor’s degree, but does not list a point value for a PhD. Is there a 
separate point value for team leads holding PhDs or are they awarded 
the same number of points as those with a Master’s degree?  
 

Answer 27 
No additional points will be awarded to individuals who hold a PhD. 

Individuals who hold a PhD will be awarded the same number of points as 

those with a Master’s degree. 

Question 28 
With respect to Form TECH-6A, it is stated that the form is limited to 12 

pages. I’d like to know whether this limit concerns individual CVs, which I 

presume is the case, or all CVs together. If the latter is the case, 12 

pages is not enough for a team of 4 experts (team leader and 3 sector 

specialists), especially given the ambitious 60 months requirement: it 
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takes many evaluation assignments over the last 10 years to reach that 

expertise level, and thus many pages to show it. We indeed need the 12 

pages for each sector specialist. 

 

Answer 28 
The stated page limit on Form TECH – 6A is per individual resource. This 

form is to be completed for each proposed team member. 

 

Question 29 
With respect to Form TECH-6B, no limit in number of pages is provided. Is 

this an omission or on purpose? 

 

Answer 29  There is no page limit for Form TECH-6B. 

Question 30 As regards what will be considered as evaluation experience, I am 

somewhat confused by the language used in the RFP versus the language 

used in Form TECH 6-A. In the definition section of the RFP on page 14, 

there is a clear distinction between “Assignment” as:  "the term assignment 

is defined as a mandate with specific duties, deliverables and a specific 

period. An assignment can be part of a full-time job.” and “Evaluation 

Assignment” refers to a “specific Assignment of short duration focusing on 

specific evaluation duties and tasks leading to evaluation deliverables 

such as an evaluation report”.    

In B-I in the RFP (page 19), it states:  “The proposed Governance Sector 

Specialist should have experience in evaluating International Assistance 

programming in Governance. For the purpose of the criterion, the Bidder is 

to clearly demonstrate the duration expressed as a level of effort (in months) 

within each Evaluation Assignment.“  However, in Form TECH 6-A the 

term “Assignment" is used and not "Evaluation Assignment”.  This 

eligibility issue is important because high level Peace and Stabilization 

experts in particular, usually serve in long-term Assignments, and do 

develop M&E experience as part of their Assignment but not necessarily as 

stand-alone short term experiences. I’d like to know whether this M&E 

experience, developed as part of longer-term Peace and Stabilization 

Assignments, is taken into account. 

Answer 30 
  As the evaluation criterion requirement is for Evaluation Assignments, the 

“Evaluation Assignment” definition applies. The Bidders response in form 

TECH-6-A should demonstrate Evaluation Assignments as defined in the 

RFP in response to these criteria. 
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B. BIDDERS CONFERENCE MINUTES AND OTHERS  

 

The bidders’ conference held on 05 January, 2018 started at 9:00 a.m. (EST) and 

ended at 9:45 a.m. (EST) 

 

 

Questions and Answers: 

 

C.1 What is the estimated start date of the project?  

A The estimated start date is 6-8 weeks from bid closing date (depending on number of 
bids received and other factors in the process). 

C.2 How many USB keys are required, for example do you require 1 USB key per section 
of our bid?  

A One (1) USB key can be provided and DFATD recommends that bidders identify the 
file name for each section of the bid in the USB key. 

C.3 Should we submit separate forms under Tech 6A if the Team Leader individual is also 

being proposed for the position of Sectoral Evaluator? 

A Each position proposed should be submitted on separate Tech 6A Forms in 
accordance with the instructions contained within the RFP and under each rated 
criteria.  

C.4 Clarification was requested with respect to the Level of Effort (LOE) and the duration 

of assignment as it relates to Tech 6A form. 

A Please refer to section B – Questions and Answers #21 of this addendum. 

C.5 Can a PhD be considered as evaluation experience for sectorial experience? 

A No, PhD is not considered experience.  It is considered education that is rated under 
each respective category; please refer to the specific criterion. 

  

C.6 Is FIN-1 the only form to be filled out for the financial bid? 

A Yes, FIN-1 is the only form to be filled out for the financial bid and bidders are to refer 
to Part 3 – 3.3 Financial Proposal Instructions of the RFP. 

C.7 Are bidders to provide the insurance documents with their bids? 

A Please refer to section B – Questions and Answers #13 of this addendum. 
 

C.8 Should non-Canadian firms bid, would DFATD re-consider the foreign exchange 

clause? (Reference was made to section 4.65 of the Supply Manual) 

A The foreign exchange clause is not part of the resulting contract provisions. 
 
In accordance with the terms of the RFP (section 3.3.2), bidders must submit their 
financial proposal in Canadian dollars (CAD). The currency applicable under the basis 
of payment in the resulting contract is CAD. This will be clearly indicated in the 
Payment Terms and Annex B - Basis of Payment of the resulting contract.  

C.9 R2.1 – highest level of education, can you explain Tech? 

A The education requirements are not cumulative. The highest level of education will be 

considered for scoring purpose.   

C.10  In the SOW (pg. 41) can you provide links to the documents listed? 

A These documents are not publicly available and will be shared with the selected 
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Contractor during the planning phase of the evaluation. 

C.11 In the SOW – can we have the number of international Assistance projects and more 

info? 

A The project list contains 157 projects and is shared with the bidders in this addendum.  

C.12 What types/level of support will be provided to the Contractor for the field missions? 

A Canada’s field mission in Ukraine does not have the capacity to provide support. All 

travel-related arrangements will be borne by the Contractor; however, the Project 

Authority will facilitate initial communication and identification of the key informants, as 

necessary.  

C.13 Will all bidder questions and answers be published on Buy and Sell? 

A Yes (refer to section 2.6 on page 6 of the RFP). 

C.14 We have a question about conflict of interest, should we ask it now at the bidder’s 
conference? 

A We ask that you submit the question in writing as per section 2.6 of the RFP. 

C.15 For the Data Collection, does DFATD have a developed list of interview questions or 
scope of data collection because of the large desk review component? 

A This will be determined during the evaluation planning phase. Please also refer to 
section B – Questions and Answers #9, 10 and 26 of this addendum related to data 
collection. 

C.16 Is the report deliverable being used internally or externally, how will it be used?  

A As per Canada’s Policy on Results, evaluation reports are to be released on web 
platforms. Therefore, since the report will be made public DFATD has determined that 
any intellectual property rights arising from the performance of the Work under the 
resulting contract will belong to Canada, for the following reasons, as set out in the 
Policy on Title to Intellectual Property Arising Under Crown Procurement Contracts: 

 
The Intellectual Property in Foreground Information consists of material subject to 
copyright, with the exception of computer software and all documentation pertaining to 
that software. 
 
Part 1 of the RFP and Part 5 - Resulting Contract Clauses has been amended to add 
clauses to this effect. Please refer to section A – Amendments of this addendum. 
 

C.17 Which documents are to be provided for the Integrity Provisions – does it apply to 
foreign/non-Canadian firms?  (http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/declaration-
eng.html).  

A Please refer to Section B – Questions and Answers #16 of this addendum. 

 

 
 

C. ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS REMAIN UNCHANGED 

http://www.ic.gc.ca/eic/site/068.nsf/eng/00005.html
http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/declaration-eng.html)
http://www.tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca/ci-if/declaration-eng.html)

